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ATTACHMENT XII

PRE-AWARD QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

PRE-AWARD QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

1. Q. Please clarify the number of proposals required.  Standard Form 33 indicates Original and 6 copies.  L.8.4 indicates 6 copies of Technical and Price proposals.  Is it 6 or 1 original plus 6? 

   
A:  The number of proposals required is one original and six copies each of the Technical and Cost proposals.  We will revise L8.4 to bring it in line with the SF33.

2. Q: B.3.3 - CLIN’S for Preventive Maintenance (PM) - Are we to provide one monthly fixed rate to provide PM for all messhalls included in the solicitation? 

   
A: Yes, a single total monthly PM rate is required. 

3. Q: B.3.4.3 - CLIN’s for repair parts.  Are all of these CLIN’s to be left blank?

   
A: Yes, leave all dollar amounts for Repair Part CLINs blank.

4. Q: Page C1EC4 of 21 - Various references to other proposal sections appear to be incorrect:


C1.5.1.1-6. - Refers to Section C1.7 for training. C1.7 is Safety Compliance 


C1.5.1.1-7. - There is no C.4.1.7


C1.5.1.1.1 - Second paragraph refers to C4.4.1 which is incorrect
   
A: Training requirements are listed in paragraph C1.5.1.1.2 on Page C1EC5 of 21 vice C1.7.

      C1.5.1.1-7 – reference to paragraph C4.1.7 is being deleted.

      C1.5.1.1.1 - the correct paragraph reference should be C4.1 

5. Q: C1.5.1.1.2 Employee Training.  What are the Technical Proposal Requirements for this area?  Is this covered under C1.5.1.1 number 6?
   
A: There are no Technical Proposal Requirements for the area of Employee Training.  Paragraph C1.5.1.2 on Page C1EC5 of 21 lists all specific training requirements that the Offeror must successfully meet.  Addressing the Technical Requirements issue in general, if a paragraph/section of the RFP does not contain a specific Technical Proposal Requirement subparagraph identified by an (*) then there are no specific responses required by the Offerors for that service or requirement.  Refer to paragraph L.8.3 of Section L, page L-10 (of 17) for additional instructions.

6. Q: C1.5.1.3 Contractor’s Quality Control Plan - The Performance Requirement Summary (PRS) to be included as Technical Exhibit 1 (TE1a-TE1c) are critical to developing our plan.  Please issue as soon as possible.

A: Technical Exhibit 1 (TE1) - Performance Requirements Summaries

(PRS’s) will be released as an amendment at a later time.  Although PRS’s are capsulated versions of contract requirements and could be viewed as relating to an Offeror’s Quality Control (QC) Plan, emphasis on the plan criticality should focus on Section C of the RFP for the Offeror’s QC Plan development and not solely on the PRS’s. 

7. Q: C1.5.1.4.2.1 - We understand that there have been discussions about the issue of contract status and end of contracts at several base locations.  Please provide any changes from what was published.

   
A: Contract expiration dates and contractors different from those cited in C1.5.1.4.2.1 are as follows:

   Camp Pendleton  - Speedy, TMI and/or 








     Moore’s Cafeteria Services
 
30 SEP 2000

   29 Palms        - DEW Management Services

30 SEP 2000

   Yuma            - Blackstone Consulting, Inc

30 NOV 2000

8. Q: We are certain that there will be updated information forthcoming on how the Small Business Plan needs to be addressed as required in C1.5.2. 

   
A: See answer to Question #106.

9. Q: Are there any Technical Proposal Requirements for C1.7 through C1.22?  If not listed as response requirements, do we have to address and acknowledge these paragraphs?  

A: Offeror’s do not have to specifically address how they will fulfill RFP paragraphs without Technical Proposal Requirements identified by an asterisk. However, the Offeror must acknowledge that they fully understand and will successfully comply with all stated requirements including those without specific Technical Proposal Requirements. Refer to answer to Question #5 above for more information. 

10. Q: C3.5.1 - for M&MA Messhalls Matrix (Section C5B) - Page C3EC5 of 9. Does the contractor slice deli meats?  What sanitation and housekeeping tasks do Marine Cooks perform in the kitchen, i.e. counters, floors, equipment, etc?

    A: As annotated in the matrix for the contractor to perform, “Deli Bar menu item preparation and replenishment” does include slicing of deli meats and is the responsibility of the Contractor.

Regarding M&MA Messhall Matrix (Section C5B) Marine cooks working in M&MA messhall galleys and other food prep areas will be responsible for cleaning counters, floors, equipment, etc. 

11. Q: C4.1.1- Mandatory Use of Government-Furnished Subsistence Sources.  Based on this requirement, we will need to be fully briefed on the Prime Vendor Program, as managed by DSCP, and receive all product listings and current pricing from all regional contracts, as well as the same on fresh fruits and vegetables from Defense Subsistence Offices, etc.  Please provide information on any markups/changes from DSCP or other agencies.

A: DSCP will provide Prime Vendor and Defense Subsistence Office (DSO) subsistence pricing and information for this RFP. DSCP provided a brief and points of contact during the pre-proposal conference and DSCP will follow-up with appropriate pricing catalogs upon request. 

12. Q:  Will there be a provision for the contractor to source “advance food technology” products from suppliers and/or centralized production facilities and resources that are not currently in the Prime Vendor Program?

    
A:  Yes.  If offerors identify products from producers not currently in the Prime Vendor program, those items can be added to the Prime Vendor catalog, or, if applicable, they may be part of the market ready items procured independent of the Prime Vendor program.

13. Q: C5.12-General Service Tasks for All Specialty Bars.  Throughout this section (C5.12.1.1 - C5.12.1.11) there are sections that have Technical Proposal Requirements and others that don’t.  Please clarify required responses.  Also some parts of C5.12.1.4 for Taco Bar Service do not apply and/or are mislabeled.
   
A: Refer to Technical Proposal Requirement response provided at Question #5, above.  In reference to C5.12.1.4 for Taco Bar service, the Government will provide corrected Taco Bar service paragraphs in a forthcoming amendment.

14. Q: What is the evaluation expectation for providing responses for several different paragraphs and/or sections that ask for the same or similar information.  For example, C5.8.1 on page C5EC 5 of 37 and C5A.4.1 on page C5AEC2 of 6 ask for the same responses. There are several additional similar requirements.  What are we required to do?

   
A: Technical Proposal Requirement responses for several different paragraphs and/or sections that address identical requirements may be handled in either one of two ways.  As an example, the offeror may begin the Technical Proposal Requirement response by stating “The following Technical Proposal Requirement response applies to both paragraphs C5.8.1 and C5A.4.1”. Or, secondly, the offeror may choose to address each one separately.  Either way is acceptable to the Government and will be evaluated identically.  Omitted or less than satisfactory responses will, of course, be evaluated/scored accordingly. 

15: Q: Pages H-3 and H-4 - Not all NISH designated messhalls are identified.

    
A: The list of messhalls designated for NISH services are updated in revised paragraph H.5, attached. 

16. Q: Attachment VII - Collective Bargaining Agreements - The agreement for the union at Camp Lejeune does not include an addendum with wage rates as page 15 indicates. 

    
A: The addendum is attached. 

17. Q: L.9 on page L-11. - Volume I, is an original plus one copy required? Is a completed DD Form 1707 required to be submitted?  Other than Section K (Reps & Certs), what is Contract Administration Data, referred to in this paragraph?

   
A:  Original (no additional copies) sufficient.  The SF33 and Section K are the executed documents required.  The 1707 need only be completed and returned if the firm is not submitting a proposal (see instructions at top of form).

18. Q: L.11.2.1.1.1-Subsistence Sourcing Plan. Are the requirements of the paragraph still valid based on the required use of Prime Vendor Program through DSCP and other Government purchasing programs?

    
A: Each offeror must provide a Subsistence Sourcing Plan under the provisions listed in the RFP.  The Government understands that the sourcing of subsistence and fresh fruits and vegetables through DSCP is somewhat of a moot point.  However, the Contractor must still source locally procured (market ready items) either regionally or 

locally and provide an entire plan encompassing all aspects of subsistence sourcing.  Additionally, the plan shall address issues such as subsistence quality and transportation/distribution processes.    

19. Q: Messhall 31611 - The Weekend Headcount TE - Only reflects 2 meal periods when 3 meals are listed in hours of operations. The Weekend Headcount TE - The totals given are more like a daily average vs a monthly average.

    
A:  Messhall 31611 serves two categories of customers: recruits who receive three meals a day, seven days a week; and permanent personnel, who eat breakfast brunch and dinner brunch on weekends.  The meal totals given in TE2 for this messhall are correct, as there are limited numbers of permanent personnel assigned who only eat the breakfast/ brunch or dinner/brunch.

20. Q: Field Feeding TE - There is an off-site “warrior breakfast” every Thursday not captured - this requirement is quite extensive and must be clarified. - Who sets up tents? Vehicle requirements?

Travel times?  Menu requirements?  Dishware?
    
A:  Contractors are only required to cook and prepare the meals/ food for transport to include proper packaging for shipment. The Government is responsible for transportation of the meals/food, serving of food, and preparation of the field messing site.  Contractor personnel are not required to perform service tasks at remote field sites.

21. Q: Field Feeding TE - There are requirements for box lunches/field messing not indicated 

    
A:  Every messhall may be required to provide box lunches and prepare meals for transport to the field.  Normally, those meals are counted as regular meals fed, and not recorded separately.  Because of that policy, some messhalls are unable to provide a historical record of box lunches and field meals served.  

22. Q: Marine Corps cook phase out - We need a detailed plan of what role/duties they will perform and actual dates phased out (i.e. Aug 2001 - 10 cooks gone, Sept 2001 - 11 more, etc.)

   
A:  All Marine cooks will be withdrawn from each individual messhalls within 90 days after the Contractor begins service in that messhall.  Under no circumstances will Marines remain in full food service messhalls longer than 90 days from Contractor start-up at the messhall.

23. Q: Messhall 53502 - Listed as Bldg. 33502 in Section C1 page 8 and  Listed as Bldg 33502 in the Marine Corps manning phase out.

A:  These are two different messhalls.  Additionally, Messhall 33502 will be replaced with Messhall 33302, which are the same size, square footage and configuration as Messhall 33502.  

24. Q: Field Feeding TE - There are requirements for box lunches/field messing not indicated.  Messhall 62502 - Listed as FFS on JWOD set-aside sheet, but M&MA on TE.

    
A:  Part 1 answered in Question #21, above.  Messhall 62502 is an M&MA messhall.

25. Q: Field Feeding - There are requirements for box lunches/field messing not indicated.   Messhall 22186 - Presently has a midnight meal not listed and is not sure if requirement will be present in Oct 2000.

   
A:  Part 1 answered in Question #21, above.  Messhall 22186 is currently providing this support due to Messhall 2403 being closed for renovation.  However, Messhall 2403 is scheduled to re-open (Oct/Nov 00) before the contract start date.  

26. Q: Field Feeding TE - There are requirements for box lunches/field messing not indicated.  Messhall 210702 - Hours of operation - Meal/Actual.

    
A:  Part 1 answered in Question #21, above.  Hours have been verified with Camp Pendleton and remain as originally identified in the RFP (TE2). 

27. Q: Field Feeding TE - There are requirements for box lunches/

field messing not indicated.   Messhall 569 - Headcount TE - No counts for weekend feeding.

    
A:  Part 1 answered in Question #21, above.  Messhall 569 is a recruit training messhall and therefore serve three meals a day, seven days a week unlike non-recruit messhalls.  Recruit headcounts differ very little from weekdays to weekends.  

28. Q: Marine Corps cook phase out - We need a detailed plan of what role/duties they will perform and actual dates phased out (i.e. Aug 2001 - 10 cooks gone, Sept. 2001 - 11 more, etc.)
    
A:  Previously answered in Question #22, above.

29. Q: We would like a headcount range that would dictate the amount of decks required (i.e. 50,000 and below = 2 decks/1 scullery).

    
A:  Messhall managers open and close serving lines and mess decks (dining areas) as required to support the command training schedule.  No historical record exists of these schedule changes.  This is a situational response to headcounts and patron flow and is at discretion of the Mess Managers based upon a number of logistical  support factors.  Contractors will have the same latitude to close serving lines and mess decks as the situation dictates as long as patron flow rates stated in the RFP/contract are maintained and customer service is not compromised.

30. Q: We can economically price this by decks if a history/guidance could be provided.

    
A:  Previously answered in Question #29, above.

31. Q: Messhall 620 - Marine Corps cook phase out.  We need a detailed plan of what role/duties they will perform and actual dates phased out (i.e. Aug. 2001 - 10 cooks gone, Sept. 2001 - 11 more , etc.)
    
A:  Previously answered in Question #22, above.

32. Q: There is a requirement for outside Bar-B-Q facility every Thursday during the summer months not captured in the TE.

    
A:  This is usually an outside cooking medium, although in some cases, the entire meal may be served outdoors.  If the requirement is not captured in the TE or Section C6 of the RFP, it does not exist.  Commands have come to enjoy and expect such “extra” or “special” services from their traditional Marine-managed messhalls.  Under the contracting scenario, Commanders and contractors will have to negotiate the “special” services.  In many cases, simply cooking or serving outside may not be more costly, as it only replaces the normal inside dining service.  These “special” meals usually draw larger crowds.  Since this contract is priced per meal served, such special services may be an advantage to the Contractor by the larger headcounts.  

33. Q: Section C5.2 Minimal manning (management) language - how will this be addressed in the amendment?

    
A: There is no mention in this Amendment of minimal management language.  The current RFP states the requirement. 

34. Q: Equipment maintenance starts after 12 months - is there a contract in place that will provide equipment maintenance and repair during this time frame?

    
A: With the exception of 29 Palms, CA, which has a separate maintenance contract, there are no existing Government contracts for Maintenance and Repair (M&R) of Food Preparation and Serving Equipment (FPSE).  The Government will continue to maintain the equipment with in-house resources until such time as the Contractor transitions to the maintenance and repair of FPSE.  The Contractors FPSE M&R responsibilities will begin in FY02 (October 2001).   

35. Q: CLIN 0002AA - ¼ hour rates for extended services - Since each messhall operates at varied manning requirements while the lines are open (i.e. 2 lines/1 scullery Vs 4 lines/2 sculleries) how are we to provide a standard cost?  Will the prime be taking the highest cost to provide a cushion?

    
A: Our experience has shown that by providing an estimated total of quarter hours (CLIN in Section B) the Contractors in turn develop pricing by ¼ hour for generic/typical services.  The onus is on the Contractor to determine how best to price these requirements across on the entire system.  

36. Q: C3.7.14 - Please identify those messhalls where office or storage space will not be provided for contractor operations.

    
A:  All messhalls will have office and storage space provided for contractor usage. 

37. Q: C5.10.1 - Do we need to have appointment letters if we provide and control petty cash for cashiers?

    
A:  There is no longer a requirement for Contractors to have appointment letters for cashiers, since the contractor assumes full responsibility for funds generated from the sale of meals in the messhalls.  

38. Q: C5.14.1 - Please provide a copy of TE8 as referenced in paragraph C5.14.1.

    
A:  There is no TE8. Reference to it should be changed to read “TE4”. 

39. Q: C5.4, C2.1.82 - Is the contractor charged for forced issue items?

    
A:  No.  If subsistence is force issued from the Government to the Contractor, there will not be a charge, only an inventory document.  As a matter of information, the Government normally “force issues” various components of operation (field) rations that are excess to field messhall operations.  These items cannot be returned to the originating source and must be consumed to preclude a financial loss to the Government.  Typically these are bulk items such sugar, coffee, rice, condiments, etc.  As issuance of forced issued rations is situational based upon field exercise schedules the offeror’s should not consider these non-chargeable rations in there pricing strategies.  

40. Q: C5.4 - Will the USMC provide us with software and hardware for STORES?

    
A:   DSCP will provide the hardware and software for STORES since it is their system.

41. Q: C5.9.2.A - Please clarify what types of assistance may be verbally requested as stated in C5.9.2.a?
    
A:  The verbal request for assistance in this regard occurs when the Government vehicle driver asks the Contractor for the special meals as previously requested by the Government.  The Contractor is then required to retrieve meals from the storage and/or preparation areas and move them to the messhall loading dock for loading by Government personnel onto Government vehicles.

42. Q: C5C3.2.1 - It is our understanding that pre-service Corrections Training is required before a contractor employee can work in a Brig Messhall. Is this correct?
    
A:  No.  Contractor personnel may work in Brig messhalls prior to receiving Government provided pre-service training.  The only drawback is that Contractor personnel will not be able to train “prisoner cooks” under the Apprenticeship Program in the performance their duties until they have successfully completed the pre-service training.  The Government will schedule pre-service training soonest for all contractor personnel.  

43. Q: When does the Marine Corps expect to schedule Brig-related and Pre-Service Corrections training?

    
A: The Government will provide pre-service training shortly after the contractor assumes operational control of the Brig messhall.  This will be coordinated with the respective Brig Officer and Contractor mess manager at a later date.

44. Q: General - When does the Marine Corps expect to make contract award?

   
A: The Marine Corps expects to make contract award by September 2000 with performance to begin by 1 January 2001. 
45. Q: General - Will there be a technical library available for contractors or will all required documents be available on the Internet?

   
A:  Yes, technical publication libraries are available at both Camp Lejeune, NC and Camp Pendleton, CA.  Offerors may contact the Base Food Service Officers at either location to make an appointment.  Base Food Service Office phone numbers for Camp Lejeune, NC are 910-451-1567 or 2716. For Camp Pendleton the phone numbers are 760-725-3368 or 3378.   

46. Q: General - Does the contractor pay DLA a consolidated invoice for food purchases under STORES? 

    
A: Today, for every delivery made, a separate invoice is paid.   DLA/DSCP will work with the Contractor to set-up vendor invoicing suitable to all.

47. Q: General - Please provide a BDFA summary for the past three years for each messhall to be outsourced?

    
A: The following table represents an average for regional messhalls for each region.

	
	FY 97
	FY 98
	FY 99
	FY00

	East Coast
	$5.620
	$5.440
	$5.418
	$5.467

	West Coast
	$5.854
	$5.520
	$5.695
	$5.834


48. Q: General - Since the contractor is responsible for the total process associated with food ordering/receiving/payment, it is our understanding that the current FSO’s MCFMIS and STORES function will be performed by the contractor. Is this correct? If not, please delineate the functions?

    
A: Correct.  The Contractor will perform all food ordering/receiving/payment functions. Payment will be made from the Contractor to DSCP for food procured through the Prime Vendor program.   

49. Q: Section B - Given that the rates for CLINS 0005, 0008, 0011, etc. for FY02 through FY08 will not be evaluated and contractor is supposed to use FY01 to assess requirements, develop and negotiate prices with the USMC, is it still required to submit prices with the proposal?

   
A: Monthly preventative maintenance rates (CLINs 0005AA, 0008AA..)  and hourly service call rates (CLINs 0005AB, 0008AB, ...) must be included in the cost proposal and will be evaluated.  Repair parts (CLINs 0005AC, 0008AC.....) must be left blank.

50. Q: Regarding Electronic Media, the RFP states, “The offer shall also provide their proposal in electronic media...compatible with Microsoft Office programs for word processing, spreadsheet and other applications that the offeror employs in its proposal."” Is it acceptable for the electronic submittal of our technical proposal to include only the proposal text in Microsoft Word?  Graphics inserted into the text cannot be searched on and can make file sizes extremely large and difficult to manage.

   
A: Yes, for the technical proposal, as a “Read Only”.

51. Q: Section J, Attachment VI (East) - Please provide all addendum for the CBA between Moore’s Cafeteria Services, Inc. and the ITPE?

   
A:  The addendum page is attached.  

52. Q: Section J - When does the Marine Corps anticipate issuing the Performance Requirement Summary?

    
A: The Marine Corps will attempt to issue the Performance Requirement Summaries in an upcoming amendment.

53. Q: Section J, Attachment 5 - Will the successful contractor be permitted to take over the messhalls that are being phased out sooner than the posted schedule?
   
A: Attachment V is no longer valid and is being deleted from the solicitation.  Please refer to Question #22, above for clarification. 

54. Q: C1.3.1, C1.5.1.4.2.1, C1.5.1.4.2.2 and TE 2(West) - C1.3.1, C1.5.1.4.2.1 and TE 2 identify Bridgeport Messhall 3006 a FFS operation not currently under contract. C1.5.1.4.2.2 lists it as part of Camp Pendleton, a M&MA operations and under contract to Speedy Food Service, Inc.  What information is correct?

   
A: Bridgeport has no current contract, but Messhall 3006 will be a FFS messhall.  It is being deleted from the C1.5.1.4.2.2. (M&MA) list.

55. Q: C1.3.1, C1.5.4.2.2 and TE 2 (West) - C1.5.1.4.2.2 and TE 2 identify Messhall 53502 a M&MA operation. C1.3.1 identifies it as a FFS operation. Which is correct?

   
A: Messhall 53502 is a FFS messhall.  Paragraph C1.5.1.4.2.2 and the TE2 for Messhall 53502 are being corrected via amendment.  

56. Q: C1.3.1, C1.5.4.2.2 and TE 2(West) - C1.5.4.2.2 and TE 2 identify Messhall 33502 as a FFS operation. C1.3.1 identifies it as a M&MA operation. Which is correct?
   
A: Messhall 33502 is a M&MA operation. Paragraph C1.5.1.4.2.2 and the TE2 for Messhall 33502 are being corrected via amendment.  

57. Q: General - Please provide the schedule for phase out of Marine Corps food service personnel for each messhall by quarter.

   
A:  Previously answered in Question #22, above.

58. Q: General - Please provide updated floor plans for facilities that were either undergoing renovation during the site visits or are currently being remodeled.  For example, it is our understanding that Messhall 210702, which we saw, is going to be closed and replaced by 210802 which we did not see.

   
A:  Floor plans are nearly identical for replacement messhalls at Camp Pendleton.  Square footages for these two messhalls are identical.  Equipment layout may differ slightly.   

59. Q: L.11.2.3 - Are the seven (7) projects to be listed for Past Performance for the team or may we provide up to seven (7) for each team member?

   
A: Each proposal shall contain seven (7) projects, total, in order for the Government to successfully evaluate past performance.  If the contractor decides to submit additional projects the additional information will be reviewed but will not carry any additional weight in the evaluation process. 

60. Q: L.8.4 - RFP font requirements state “text no smaller than 11 pitch characters to the inch” Is 12 point Times New Roman acceptable?

    
A:  Yes, 12 point Times New Roman is acceptable.

61. Q: C1.5.1.1.2/4 - It is our understanding that the Government will provide MCFMIS training to contractor personnel.  What is the per person cost of the initial MCFMIS training?

   
A:  The Government will provide initial MCFMIS training, at contract start-up, at no cost to the Contractor.  The Contractor shall provide follow-on training, when necessary, due to contractor personnel turnover from their internal resources.  

62. Q: C5.8.1 - How do you measure patron flow?  At what point does the clock start and stop?

   
A:   For the Main Entrée Serving lines, and as stated in paragraph C5.8.1., patron flow “…will commence when the patron is positioned in front of the first serving well/menu item on the main entrée serving line.”  For Fast Food/Carry-Out serving lines, and as stated in paragraph Section C5.8.2., patron flow “…will commence when the patron is positioned in front of the fast food/carry-out serving counter or serving line”.  The clock will stop when Contractor serving line personnel have completed serving the patron and the patron has proceeded to other areas in the messhall. 

63. Q: TE-2 pg 1 of 6 (West) - On Sundays, Building 569 MCRD San Diego is allowing 1 hour and 15 minutes to feed the average headcount of 4,034.  What is the actual time frame and headcount for Sunday meals?

   
A:  The 1 hour and 15 minute meal period for Messhall 569 on Sunday mornings is the correct meal serving period. 

64. Q: Section B - Please give an example of how the 1/26th billing would work with a variation in meal quantity.

    
A: The provisional billing rate, 1/26th of Target Price, will not be affected by variations in meal quantity. Section B will be revised to provide for quarterly reconciliation of actual meals served (times target price per meal), and annual reconciliation of actual costs above or below target cost.

65. Q: Section B - There is a difference between the estimated meal quantity in Section B and the summation of the meal quantities in Technical Exhibit 2.  Please clarify.

    
A: Please refer to Question #75, below.

66. Q: Section C -C1.5.1.1.1 - What are the historical annual food cost increases for subsistence provided by the Government’s Defense Logistics Agency (DLA), Defense Supply Center - Philadelphia (DSCP) Subsistence Prime Vendor Program?

    
A: A more accurate way of answering this question is to provide Basic Daily Food Allowance (BDFA) comparisons in regard to Prime Vendor price increases since the two are tie to one another.  

Question #51 provides Basic Daily Food Allowance (BDFA) information  for both coasts of the past several years noting that there was little significant change and even decreases in some years.  Obviously the DSCP pricing is a major factor in those BDFA numbers due to the fact that BDFA computations by the Services are based upon DSCP regional Prime Vendor prices.  Under this solicitation the BDFA is no longer applicable.

67. Q: Section C - C1.5.1.1.1 - What are the forecasted escalations for subsistence provided by the Government’s Defense Logistics Agency (DLA), Defense Supply Center - Philadelphia (DSCP) Subsistence prime vendor Program?

    
A: There are no forecasted escalations for subsistence purchased by DSCP.   A reasonable expectation is that the DSCP pricing will closely follow the food component of the Producer’s Price Index.

68. Q: Section C - C1.5.1.1.1 - If the Government’s Defense Logistics Agency (DLA), Defense Supply Center - Philadelphia (DSCP) Subsistence Prime Vendor Program increases its handling fee, can the contractor get an equitable adjustment?

   
A: The DSCP surcharge in 4 of the last 5 years have been decreasing (FY00 – 5.8%, FY99 – 5.2%, FY98 – 5.5%, FY97 – 6.0%, FY96 – 6.1%), with fluctuations of less than 1 percent over that period; such minimal increases/decreases should in turn have a minimal effect on Offeror’s pricing.  Based on current levels and recent modest changes there should be no need for any special equitable adjustment.  

69. Q: Section E - In E.3 was “Inspection of Services-Fixed Price” 52.246-4 intended instead of “Inspection of Supplies-Fixed Price” 52.246-2?

   
A: FAR 52.246-4 should have been included. This will be corrected in the amendment.

70. Q: Section I - I.10, 52.219-26 What SIC codes are you going to evaluate?

    
A: The major SIC (standard industrial classification) groups applicable to clause 52-219.26 are published by the Small Business Administration on the Internet at http://www.sba.gov/regulations/siccodes.  The major groups are 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 34, 36, 37, 38, 39, 41, 42, 44, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 67, 70, 73, 75, 76, 80, 82, 87, and 89.   It should be noted that the question refers only to the incentive subcontracting clause, and that there is no restriction as to the specific SIC codes for small business subcontracting in general.

71. Q: Section L - How will the Marine Corps evaluate the food cost of the Offerors, since Offerors are required to use the Government’s Defense Logistics Agency (DLA), Defense Supply Center- Philadelphia (DSCP) Subsistence Prime Vendor Program for subsistence sourcing?

   
A: The food cost itself will not be evaluated.  Since the pricing methodology of price per meal will be used and food is only a portion of the total price per meal, the price per meal is the evaluating factor.  To the extent that all offerors use DSCP similarly should be an equalized part of the proposal/evaluation.

72. Q: Section L - Will the Marine Corps consider equalizing food cost between vendors since all vendors are required to use the Government’s Defense Logistics Agency (DLA), Defense Supply Center - Philadelphia (DSCP) Subsistence Prime Vendor Program?

  
A: Response is similar to Question #71, above.

73. Q: Section L - Since Offerors are required to use the Government’s Defense Logistics Agency (DLA), Defense Supply Center - Philadelphia (DSCP) Subsistence Prime Vendor Program, will L.11.2.1.1.1 be modified? 

  
A:  No.  Offerors must still identify sources of market ready items and their quality, transportation and distribution plans for local items and foods processed centrally.

74. Q: Section M - 3.4.1 Please describe and give examples of “potential overrun and underrun scenarios”.

  
A:  We will use offerors’ proposed targets, share ratios, and ceiling to assess what would be the cost to the Government if the actual per-meal cost falls below or exceeds the targets proposed (as seen in the examples at the end of Section B).

75. Q: Technical Exhibit 2 - “Total estimated number of meals served annually (actual calendar Year 1998 data)” does not always match the summation of “Historical meal data”.  Please clarify.

   
A: Please refer to the attached tables.  These meal counts replace those meal counts previously provided in the RFP as paragraph 14 of all Technical Exhibit 2’s. 

76. Q: CDRL listing - Item 15 on CDRL listing does not correspond with supporting document.  Please clarify.

    
A: CDRL #15 on the CRDL Matrix, Attachment IV (page 1 of 20) should read “Unsatisfactory Material Report (UMR)” vice “Messhall Equipment Replacement Report and Equipment Record Jackets”.  The corrected pages, one for each regional contract, are attached.

77. Q: C4.2.11.2 - Under paragraph C4.2.11.2, is there any liability for the contractor when the Government performs the work?

    
A: C4.2.11.2 refers to emergency repairs made after hours by the Government.  In this case, the Contractor is not liable for Government repairs.  The Contractor’s liability begins when the contractor performs maintenance on that same item of equipment.  
78. Q: General - How will DSCP increases for food components be incorporated into the cost per meal?

   
A:  Although costs for individual items may fluctuate, the overall market basket index has remained relatively stable over the last four years.  The Government is considering a Economic Price Adjustment (EPA) clause, which would provide an avenue for Contractors to be compensated for extraordinary cost increases.  On the other hand, food cost decreases may also justify a downward EPA.  The EPA will be addressed in a future amendment.

79. Q: Attachment 5 - Please provide us with the actual dates when Marine Corps personnel will depart each specific Messhall, for costing purposes.

   
A:  Previously answered in Question #22, above.

80. Q: Phase-In-Plan - When does the contract/option period end for Craven Evaluation and Training Center (CETC) at Messhall 3451?

    
A: 30 September 2000.

81. Q: General - Will NISH provide the offerors with a detailed breakdown of the work schedules and cost breakdown by employee, position, number of hours worked, and hourly rate of pay?

    
A: This is addressed in the revised paragraph H.5, attached.

82. Q: General - What arrangements do we need to make to visit additional site or revisit some of those previously seen?

    
A: Contact Mr. Paul Sando, who will coordinate additional visits with the Marine Corps Head of Food Service and Subsistence Section at Headquarters, Marine Corps.  Mr. Sando’s phone number is 703-695-6225, extension 2525. 

83. Q: General - Will a third party vendor be required to use raw food products from DSCP in the preparation of advanced food technology products?

   
A:  Not necessarily.  A third parties finished product may simply be added to the Prime Vendor catalog.  In cases where the 3rd party vendor uses food sourced from foreign sources, raw product WILL be required from DSCP to satisfy the requirements of the Berry Amendment.

Please refer to Question #97 below for additional clarification.

84. Q: General - Is MCFMIS scheduled to be upgraded to Windows?  If so, what is the anticipated date of implementation?

   
A:  Windows update is already under development.  No implementation date has been determined at this time.

85. Q: General - Please provide a current inventory by messhall of computer hardware and software, including the systems configuration, software and communications packages associated with each computer that will be made available to the contractor.

   A:  The Government does not understand the rationale behind this question.  Since there are no external MCFMIS system interfaces required beyond MCFMIS and all MCFMIS systems are less than two years old, which includes LAN capability and a printer, there is no need to collect and provide this information.

86. Q: General - Since the contractor will now be responsible for ordering all food through the STORES program, will the existing computers at the Food Service Office (FSO) be made available to the contractor?

   A: Yes. All FSO STORES systems will available to the Contractor.
87. Q: General - Is the current Marine Corps computer equipment on an upgrade schedule?  If so, when are they scheduled to be replaced?

   
A:  Yes.  Each command maintains its own upgrade schedule.  New equipment specifications are provided by HQMC.

88. Q: With the Small Business Administration (SBA) appeal being resolved, may we contact Mr. Sando’s office regarding additional site visits?

    
A: Yes. Please refer to Question #82, above.
89. Q: Will Small Businesses in EZ/ECs be treated same as Hub Zone Small Businesses?

A:  No, there are no procurement preference provisions for empowerment zones (EZ).

90. Q: What should a Small Business present to “prove” it is a small business?

    
A: Self-certification is sufficient.

91. Q: What does the Marine Corps see as the advantages of having two separate contractors for the East and West Coast versus a single contractor for both coasts?

   
A: Given the close physical proximity of Marine Corps bases in the Southwest U.S., as well as those in the Southeast, it is felt that dividing our CONUS activities into those two regions is the most effective means of promoting the application of advanced food technologies to our requirements.

92. Q: Is there any contract out clause or provision for this if the successful offeror wishes to bow out?

   
A: No such clause exists in this contract.  Should a Contractor repudiate the contract, the Government may terminate the Contractor for default and assess reprocurement costs against the defaulted Contractor. 
93. Q: Is produce required to be purchased from DSCP?

   
A:  Yes, via the Defense Subsistence Offices (DSO).

94. Q: Please provide exactly what the contractor’s relationship is to be with DLA/DSCP and to what extent are they to be utilized?

   
A:  Contractors will order a majority of their subsistence from DLA/DSCP.  They will enjoy a normal customer-provider relationship.  

95. Q: Currently, Navy Med. regulations seem to limit the length of time that “Cook Chill” food can be held for 3 days.  Will this be changed or will the contractor not be subject to these restrictions?

   
A:  The three day limit is for pre-prepared foods, i.e. sandwiches, salads, etc.; as distinguished from cook-chilled or souse-vide commercially prepared foods, whose shelf lives are much longer (e.g., generally 45 to 60 days).  

96. Q: What control will the JWOD contractor have over the contracts where they are assigned?

    
A: See revised paragraph H.5 for clarification.

97. Q: What restrictions are in place that controls the price of food that we are required to buy through the Prime Vendor Program?

   
A:  As the Subsistence Prime Vendor program makes great use of commercial items and commercial practices the market place tends to be the controlling factor.  Two significant contract requirements which tend to reduce sources and thereby exert upward pressure on the price (although not always) are the Berry Amendment prohibitions on the use of items not grown and produced in the U.S. and its territories (limited exceptions apply) and the Surgeon General requirement that certain products be obtained from one of the Sanitarily Approved lists.  Another limiting factor not encountered in commercial business is the unavailability of a supplier because it has been Suspended or Debarred.

98. Q: Would you please provide the MOU that exists between the Marine Corps and DSCP?

   
A: Yes. A copy is attached to this amendment.  

99. Q: What is the DSCP mark up/added charge to Prime Vendor Invoices and other vendor invoices?

   
A: The current (FY00) DSCP surcharge is 5.8% for customers in the continental U.S.

100. Q: DSCP - Will the maximum price paid to DSCP for produce be the price the USMC currently pays? 

   
A:  No. The price of produce can be susceptible to price fluctuations based on various factors, so it would be impossible to make the current prices paid the maximum or ceiling price. 

101. Q: It is understood that this price may be less based on ordering methods but will the current prices be the maximum? and does this current pricing include the 8-10% discount you mentioned earlier?

   
A: No. The current prices for subsistence provided through DSCP’s will not be the maximum prices. Again, subsistence items are susceptible to price fluctuations due to seasonal and or unique events in the marketplace, so it would be impossible to make the current prices paid the maximum price.  The current prices do not reflect the 8-10% discount discussed.

102. Q:  Payment/Billing Schedule - We invoice USMC every two weeks. When will we be paid?

   
A: The DFAS billing cycle is 30 days after receipt of a valid invoice, though offer of a prompt payment discount for expedited payment (e.g., 1%-20 days) could also be a factor.  The successful offeror will be required to accept Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) for payment.

103. Q: DSCP will invoice the contractor weekly, how long do we have to pay?

   
A: At the Pre-Proposal Conference held on 14 Mar 00, one of the DSCP representatives stated that the DSCP normal billing cycle was monthly.  That is unlikely to change in the near and medium term.  It is anticipated that the contractor will be required to pay DSCP for subsistence items ordered in 30 days (or less).  It is anticipated that there will be a written agreement between DSCP and each Offeror spelling out these and other areas of partnership.

104. Q: Page B-15 (of 19) - East Coast - Ceiling price per meal: Total cost to the Marine Corps for all subsistence and services is approximately $3.75 per meal.  What costs comprise this $3.75? (i.e. Labor, maintenance/cost of goods/repair parts/cleaning supplies/utilities, etc?

A:  The current total cost to the Marine Corps for all subsistence and services within the scope of this contract is approximately $3.75 per meal.  The total costs reflect the levels of effort which are subject to the Regional Food Service Contracts.

The costs, therefore, include all subsistence (both DSCP Prime Vendors and Locally procured); current messhall labor contracts; 594 Marine Cooks; Marine mess attendants at MCRD Parris Island, MCRD San Diego, Marine Barrack 8th & I, Bogue Field and MWTC Bridgeport; and cleaning supplies.  The Marine Corps is now spending $111.0 million to serve a total of 29,654,000 meals as shown below:

Cost for supplies and services within the scope of the Regional Food Service Contracts:

Subsistence: 



$ 53.3M

Mess contracts:  


$ 31.0

594 Marine Cooks: 


$ 20.5

Marine Mess Attendants:

$  5.7

Cleaning Supplies:


$   .5
Total:                 

$111.0M

Number of Meals Served:

East Coast Messhalls: 

16,791,000

West Coast Messhalls:  

12,863,000
Total:




29,654,000

Cost per meal:  


$3.743

The above costs do not include items that are not a part of the regional contracts.  The following items are excluded from the total costs of $111M:  

-  Messhall utilities and facility maintenance costs:  The Marine Corps will provide at no charge, as is the case today.

-  Disposable paper products to include boxes/bags for lunches, paper and plastic for recreation and field meals:  The Marine Corps will provide at no charge, as is the case today.  

-  Marine cooks who are assigned to the operating forces:  This is cost neutral.  These Marine cooks will continue to work at the M&MA messhalls.   

-  Food preparation and serving equipment maintenance and repair parts:  Included in the regional contract as separate CLINs. 

The Offeror’s proposal may include the centralized production  capabilities.  Under that scenario, the proposal costs should include the applicable costs of operating or accessing such a facility [e.g., labor, raw ingredients, utilities, maintenance, transportation and operating supplies] in determining the final price per meal.  

105. Q: Will you provide recipes detailed for all menu items?


A:  All recipes are contained in the Armed Forces Recipe Service, which is accessible through MCFMIS and at www.nll.navsup.navy.mil/recipe.

106. Q: How will the 30% Small Business goals be enforced? (i.e. Sanctions, penalties, etc)  If so, will penalties be in revisions?

   
A:  The 30% mandatory small business subcontracting requirement is not the same as the small business subcontracting goal which will appear in the small business subcontracting plan, though the two are related.  Specific details of the small business subcontracting provisions are contained in revised clauses C.1.5.2, L.11.2.2, and M.3.4.3.  The primary enforcement mechanism is the liquidated damages clause.

107. Q: When will Wage Determinations be provided?

   
A:  HQMC first approached the Department of Labor (DOL) with written requests during October 1999.  HQMC has not received the Wage Determinations as of yet.  We will provide these in a future amendment.

108. Q: When will NISH pricing be provided?

  
A: This is addressed in the revised paragraph H.5.

109. Q: The Marine Corps currently has a Cook Chill facility in Okinawa. What savings have been achieved there?  

   
A:  Most significantly at this point is a 28% reduction in the number of mess attendants has been achieved.  Although the Okinawa plant is still growing into its full production capability (opened Jul 99), many food processes such as salad preparation and other bulk “pumpable” items are being tested, developed and reviewed for patron acceptability.   

110. Q: The Marine Corps has stated that it anticipated that centralized production will yield an eight to ten percent decrease in cost.  Please provide any and all studies that have lead the Marine Corps to this conclusion.

   
A:  There appears to be some confusion in regard to the 8-10% DSCP cost decrease.  This reduction only applies to DSCP products delivered directly to a Contractors central production facility (CPF), if applicable.  The 8-10% price reduction does not apply to subsistence items delivered directly to individual messhalls/receptor sites.  As a matter of information, typical commercial industry CPF food cost savings from cook-serve to cook-chill is 20-25%.    

111. Q: What objectives have been established for Randolph-Shepherd Act (RSA) contractors?  If so, please provide details.

  
A:  No arrangements have been made with RSA contractors.  They are eligible to propose under the full and open competition requirements of this solicitation.

112. Q: What controls are in place, to control the cost generated by the JWOD contractors?

  
A:  After contract award, the prime contractor will be responsible for monitoring costs of all subcontractors, including the JWOD subcontractors.  Costs considered not fair and reasonable will be addressed by the JWOD Committee.

113. Q: Please provide all cost related information that involves JWOD that you have been made aware of: A) Wage determination and..... B) Additional Messhall allotments to JWOD through out the lives of these solicitations.

   
A:  See clause H.5.  Wage determinations are a matter of public record and are published annually by the Department of Labor.  Only those messhalls already detailed in the solicitation will be set-aside for JWOD throughout the life of the contract.  

114. Q: Please provide the methods by which the Marine Corps will determine whether it will achieve its targeted savings? Please provide details.

   
A:  The contract type selected, fixed-price incentive, will provide visibility on actual costs incurred by the contractor in performance. Savings can thus be determined by calculating the difference between those actual costs and estimated amounts associated with the Marine Corps food service program as it exists today (See Question #104), escalated for inflation.

115. Q: The estimates listed in the two solicitations appear to be significantly overstated: has the Marine Corps relied strictly on historical data or has there also been additional data considered?

   
A:  Although not quite sure which estimates this question is referring to, none of the estimates are significantly overstated or understated.  HQMC relied on historical data provided by Marine Corps Base/Station commands for estimates contained in the RFP.  

116. Q: How did you determine that ASC was a Small Business?  It is my understanding that ASC is a Large Business.

    
A:  That is correct, ASC is a large business. 

117. Q: The Marine Corps has indicated that they will be spending 90 Million dollars on those two contracts.  How did the Marine Corps come to this number? How does this compare with what your spending today? What specific detail can you provide concerning this issue?

    
A:  The exact methodology is procurement sensitive as it relates to the construction of the Government Estimate.  The 90 million dollar figure is a good faith Government Estimate.  Refer to Question #104, above for a complete explanation.  

118. Q: What were the actual meals served in the Messhalls included in the East Coast solicitation and then in the West Coast solicitation?

Please provide this information with a breakout by Messhall.

   
A:  The recomputed numbers are attached. 

119. Q:  How did the Marine Corps come to the conclusion that these solicitations needed to be competed as Unrestricted?

   
A:  The determination was made in compliance with FAR 19.502-2(b)(1), which requires that a reasonable expectation must exist that at least two responsible small business concerns will submit proposals.  The Marine Corps concluded that this "reasonable expectation" does not exist, given the necessary financial, organizational, technical and production capabilities required for contracts of this magnitude.
120. Q: The Anti Bundling Law requires the agency doing the bundling to identify significant savings that will be obtained by bundling.  a) Please identify the studies, both internal and externally done that indicates substantial savings?  And b) please provide these studies and the criteria that was reviewed.

A: The Marine Corps complied with all documentation requirements on contract consolidation for this procurement, which included the identification of $20 million in savings estimated to be generated through this regionalization initiative.  It is significant that the Small Business Administration did not challenge the Marine Corps rationale for consolidation of contracts for this procurement.

There are a number of studies that support the regionalization approach, including documents such as Marine Corps Integrated Food Service Master Plan (1990), Marine Corps Use of Cook Chill Technology (1996), Concept Paper (Food Service Campaign Plan)(1997), "ANALYSIS OF THE IMPACT OF CONVENIENCE FOODS ON NAVY FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS (1998), and Economic Analysis of Regionalized Mess Contracting (1999).  These studies will not be provided as part of the amendment since they are not required for proposal preparation.
121. Q: When did the Marine Corps first examine the possibility of changing its traditional method of contracting at the base level and utilize the regional method?

   
A:  In 1990.

122. Q: What effective evaluation of Small Business was done to determine if Small Business had the ability to provide the required service for these regional contracts?

A:  The Marine Corps reviewed correspondence submitted to the Small Business Administration by 5 small business concerns, reflecting their interest in the regional food service program.  Three of the submissions consisted of form letters with little or no data describing their abilities.  Two of the respondents did provide details on the level and scope of services provided under recently awarded food service contracts managed by those two companies.  In both cases, the support described the contractor's experience in providing standard food services on a relatively small scale at single installations.  Nothing submitted by any of the 5 firms would create a reasonable expectation that they would be capable of fulfilling requirements of the scope required by the solicitations.

123.  Q:  Has the Marine Corps received any interest from Small Business indicating their interest in providing the required services for either of these two contracts?  

A:  Yes.  Please refer to the answer to Question #122, above.  The Marine Corps encourages the maximum participation of small business firms in all aspects of this procurement, including the submission of proposals as the prime contractor; in teaming arrangements with other Offerors (large and small); and as subcontractors.  

124. Q: There seems to be a labor cost problem in that Dept. of Labor issues different Wage Determinations for each state and the District of Columbia.  CBA’s from the different unions also show a variance of labor hourly cost figures.  How will this be computed to give a single per Marine meal cost?  Addressing this issue perhaps by region (breaking up East/West contract to State region) could impact favorably on per meal costs to USMC.

   
A:  The total cost to provide the required labor and subsistence should be included, resulting in a weighted average cost per meal.  See the answer to Question #91 for a discussion of our regional approach.  

125. Q: Is JWOD considered in 30% set-aside for Small Business?

    
A:  JWOD is not included in the 30% mandatory small business requirement; however, JWOD is included in the small business goal calculations and reporting under the small business subcontracting plan.  See revised clauses C.1.5.2, L.11.2.2, and M.3.4.3 for specific details.

126. Q: What percentage of the contract will be awarded to prime vendors?

    
A:  0% of the contract will be awarded to Prime Vendors, in the context of the DSCP Prime Vendor Program.  The contracts will be awarded to prime contractors, who will subcontract with JWOD agencies, Small Businesses, DLA/DSCP, Prime Vendors, and others for necessary support.

127. Q: What percentage of the goods will be supplied by general contractor, specifically does this include janitorial supplies, equipment, etc.?

   
A:  A majority of goods will be supplied by the prime contractor including janitorial, chemical and disposable paper/plastic products.  Please refer to Question #147, below for further clarification regarding consumable supplies.  
128. Q: Regarding food service, what is the goal for minority and Small Business?

   
A:  See revised clauses C.1.5.2, L.11.2.2, and M.3.4.3 for details concerning the calculation of goals.

129. Q: If they are subcontractors, will they be subcontracting through food service companies or through the Marine Corps?

   
A:  Subcontractors will be dealing through the food service company, which will be the prime contractor, not the Marine Corps.

130. Q: What minimum qualifications are required for subcontractors?

   
A:  None, other than the ability to perform in accordance with the Statement of Work and the prime contractor’s technical proposal.

131. Q: Are there food source data sheets that will accompany the solicitation?

    
A:  No.  DSCP has offered to provide a list of its Prime Vendors and available market ready providers by location.  

132. Q: May we have a list of local and current contract food vendors?

    
A:  DSCP has offered to provide a list of its Prime Vendors and available market ready providers by location.  Attached is a listing of market-ready items that are procured independently of the DSCP program.  

133. Q: Are we going to be supplied with a current Wage Determination?

   
A:  Please refer to the answer to Question #107, above.

134. Q: Are there any existing H&W, pension, and/or uniform allowances?

    
A:  We are sure these items are included in our existing contracts.  However HQMC does not have this information on file.  Yes, all of these items need to be factored into your costs.

135. Q: Do we need to provide a current financial statement or any other financial documentation?

   
A:  The Marine Corps will evaluate the responsibility of each offeror, which includes financial capability.  Any information included in offeror’s proposals describing the offeror’s (team members) capacity and capability will assist the Marine Corps in its assessment of responsibility.

136. Q: Where will invoices be certified?

   
A:  The HQMC Contracting Office will certify all regional invoices.
137. Q: Is this an appropriated fund acquisition?

   
A:  Yes, this is an appropriated fund acquisition.

138. Q: How will mobilizations/national emergency situations be handled under the contract?

   
A:  These issues are somewhat addressed in paragraphs C1.11, C1.23.4.1. and C1.25 of the RFP.  For extraordinary situations outside the scope of the RFP a separate negotiation will take place between the Government and the Contractor.

139. Q: Will DSCP pay the Prime Vendors?

   
A:  Yes.  DSCP is responsible for paying the Prime Vendors under their program.  The Contractor will pay DSCP for subsistence purchased.  Also refer to Questions #46 and #103, above. 
140. Q: What if prices come in higher than the Marine Corps anticipated?

   
A:  Please refer to the answer for Question #114, above.

141. Q:  Will additional questions be accepted?

   
A:  Yes, forward additional questions to Mr. Paul Sando (E-mail or fax) as soon as possible.  Mr. Sando’s e-mail address is “sandope@hqmc.usmc.mil”.  Fax at 703-695-6382.

142. Q: What is our target date for release of TE1?

   
A:  We anticipate including TE1 in Amendment 0002.

143. Q: How do we envision CBAs being negotiated?

   
A:  We would foresee that existing CBAs would remain in effect at least until new agreements can be negotiated.  We would hope long-term agreements can be established.

144. Q: What was the rationale for two solicitation closing dates?  Can they be brought back together?

  
A:  The closing dates are being recombined and extended to 26 June 2000. 

145. Q: Do you anticipate M&MA messhalls will remain so for the full term of the contract?

  
A:  Contractors should prepare their proposals assuming that those messhalls will remain M&MA for the life of the contract.

146. Q: Is it still the intent of the Government not to provide land/facilities to the contractor for the central processing of food?

  
A:  Correct.  We do not intend to provide such land/facilities.

147. Q:  C3.6 - Please clarify what “fast food and emergency disposable paper products” the Government will provide?  Identify what consumable type supplies the contractor needs to supply, i.e. who supplies paper napkins, plastic film, aluminum foil?  Does the Government provide all paper and disposable products for all meals away from the messhall (boxes/bags for lunches, paper/plastic for recreation meals and field meals)?

   
A:  The Government will supply only emergency disposable paper products in support of situations caused by the Government which inhibits or hinders the Contractor from using regular dishware and silverware.  An example is a Government scheduled or unscheduled utility outage.  The Government may also provide items following national disasters.  The Government will not provide disposable paper products to the Contractor for situations such as an inoperable warewashing machine, when the Contractor is required to repair this item under the FPSE M&R tasks under this contract.  

The Contractor is required to provide all other items to include fast food paper products and bags/boxes for recreational meals.  The Contractor is not required to provide paper/plastic items for recreational meals.  The Government (unit receiving recreational meals and/or field meals) is responsible for providing its own paper/plastic items.  However, plastic film, aluminum foil, etc., associated in the preparation and packaging of meals to be consumed away from the messhall is the responsibility of the Contractor as it is in general support of meal preparation and storage processes. 

148. Q: Please clarify what the contractor’s responsibility will be for on base transportation for performing tasks identified in the Statement of Work.

   
A:  There are no specific requirements for the Contractor to provide on-base transportation for contractor employees with the exception of the requirements addressed in paragraph C1.11.2.  Typically, contractor personnel commute directly from their residences to their respective messhall via personal conveyance.  There is no 

requirement for contractor personnel to perform tasks other than those in a messhall or other type of support facility if utilized by the particular Contractor.  Contractor personnel are not required to perform duties in remote locations away from the messhall such as field mess site.   
149.  Q:  Will offerors using a third party vendor for their advanced food technology be required to prepare products following the Armed Forces Recipes only, with the exception of the addition of modified starches, when required, as the only acceptable change to the recipe?


A:  Correct.  The Armed Forces Recipes are the standard with minor changes allowed for advanced food technology.  The Marine Corps, however, would consider allowing the use of alternative recipes that have the same proportion of meats to vegetables and fat and sodium content, on an exception basis.

150.  C.1.21.1 - Pre-employment Examination - Prior to and annually thereafter, contractor personnel shall obtain medical clearance from their private physician stating they are free from communicable disease per NAVMED P5010, Chapter 1, Food Safety and BUMED Instruction 6224.1 series.   Chapter 1 - para. 2-2.2, in the P5010, states that an initial screening does not normally include a physical examination, but shall be sufficient to detect evidence of diseases that may be transmitted to food.  Also it states that subsequent health screening  (e.g., annual evaluation) is not routinely required. 

    Q: Can local command medical services provide initial screening, to save money?

    A:  No.  The Government’s ability to provide contractor employee initial medical screening uniformly across all Marine Corps Bases/Stations is inadequate.  The Government does not possess sufficient medical personnel to provide contractor employee medical clearance screening.  Therefore, the contractor is required to provide this screening for all employees prior to work assignment in a messhall. 

151.  Q:  Can initial screening be conducted as per your para. C1.21.3 (Work Shift examinations) vice a private physician?

    A:  No.  Chapter 1 – paragraph 2-2.2, NAVMED P5010, Chapter 1, Food Safety states that “All food employees shall be medically screened for evidence of communicable disease prior to initial assignment in food service.”  An initial screening for contractor employees is considerably different than a work shift examination.  A person “walking off the street” will require a more in-depth “initial” screening than a contractor employee beginning a work shift in the messhall.  For example, screening an employee for tuberculosis through a PPD test is not something you can perform during a work shift examination.   

152.  Q: Can annual examinations be waived?

    A:  No.  The Government will not waive the annual examination requirement.  Although Chapter 1 – Food Safety states “…not routinely required.”,  the Government must ensure that personnel directly involved in providing food service to Government messhall patrons are properly examined and screened for diseases, annually.
153.  C3.3.1.2.2 - The contractor shall be responsible for all minor property (i.e., forks, knives, spoons, dishware, trays, etc.) associated with all contracted messhalls.  The Government will apply a 10% tolerance for silverware and a 5% tolerance for dishware from the initial or previous inventory...........

    C3.3.1.2.3 - The contractor shall reimburse the Government for any quantities exceeding those tolerances..........

    Q:  Is this 10% & 5% allowance “from the initial previous inventory provided” annually or over the contract period?

    A:  As stated in the title for paragraph C3.3.1.2 of the RFP this is a “Monthly Minor Property Inventory” requirement.  Therefore, the tolerances are applied “monthly”.  The “initial” inventory only refers to that first minor property inventory conducted at contract start for each messhall, which will be a joint Government/Contractor inventory.  The “previous” month’s inventory is just that – the previous calendar month’s minor property inventory.   

154.  Q:  Please clarify status of Building 14036.  TE2 list this facility as Management & Mess Attendant where as section C1.3.1 “West Coast Messhalls” requiring full food service” list this facility as a Full Food Service facility.  Please clarify which is correct?

    A:  Messhall 14036 is a Full Food Service (FFS) facility.  This is corrected in Amendment 0002. 

155.  Q:  The TE2 for Camp Pendleton Messhall #2403, states “mid rats” (midnight rations typically used by Marine Corps Air Station to feed shift workers) will be implemented 1 April 99, however no hours are reflected.  In addition, the estimated days this facility is expected to be in operation projects this facility to close from 2nd quarter 00 to 3rd quarter 01.   Is this still a valid projection?  Which facility will receive the overflow when this facility closes?

    A:  Messhall 2403 is tentatively scheduled to reopen 1 Oct 00.  Messhall 22186 is currently accommodating the personnel from Messhall 2403.  Messhall 22186 is feeding “mid rats” now, but once Messhall 2403 reopens the “mid rat” requirement will remain with Messhall 2403 not Messhall 22186.   

156.  Q: Please clarify enhancements, its accounting to include if each training unit will be funding this requirement.  It is my understanding that cost factor to provide enhancements alone has been as high as $2M, which is not included in your subsistence cost.  How are we to estimate cost for enhancements, if this is separate accounting?

    A:  This solicitation is based upon a new pricing scheme of cost-per-meal for garrison messhalls.  Enhancements to operational (field) rations or meals will not be provided from garrison messhalls under this regional contract.  The enhancement requirement for operational rations will be the responsibility of other internal Marine Corps units.   

157.  Q:  Personnel during extreme weather conditions is a concern at Bridgeport.  If employees are confined to the facility because of roads being closed, what provisions in the contract will cover contractor cost when contract employees are housed in the guest house; i.e. billeting?  Since this will be a direct cost to the contract, how will the contractor be reimbursed?
    A:  Contractor personnel billeting during severe weather conditions (as determined by the Commanding Officer of the Mountain Warfare Training Center and/or local road conditions) at Bridgeport, CA will be at no cost to the Contractor. 

158.  Q:  Page C5BWC 1 of 1 - The Government is responsible for all food prep except salad preparation, yet the contractor is responsible for subsistence, MCFMIS, operations storeroom and salad room.  Please clarify what if any does the Marines who are cooks have to do with the menu planning of this operation, in the area of food preparation?

    A:  In regard to menu planning, please refer to C5BWC, Page 1 of 1 for menu planning clarification.  With regard to food preparation tasks, please refer to paragraph C3.5, Pages C3WC4 and C3WC5 of 9 for the “Management and Mess Attendant (M&MA) Services Matrix (SectionC5B) which delineates those tasks to be performed by the Government (Marine cooks) and those to be performed by the Contractor. 

159.  Q:  Please clarify “Grounds Maintenance”.  All of our TE’s state that we police specific circumferences, and there is no mention of maintenance (i.e., mowing, weeding).    

    A:  Please refer to paragraph C5.15 for both East and West Coast RFPs for further clarification of the Government’s grounds maintenance requirements.  Specifically, grass mowing is covered in a separate Government services contract unrelated to this acquisition.

160.  Q:  Can the Marine Corps provide a recap of total funds paid to DSCP  and DSO for all food service related products and produce for 1998 and 1999?  

A:  The Marine Corps relies on DSCP for this type of information based upon annual obligations.  DSCP does not separate accounting data for general subsistence type items as versus produce procured through the DSOs.  Therefore the totals include produce procured through the DSOs.   The following Continental U. S. (CONUS) subsistence totals are provided for Fiscal Years (FY) 1998 and 1999.      

FY98 CONUS-wide – $54,826,455

FY99 CONUS-wide – $55,826,271

161.  Q:  The responses to Questions #12, #18, and #73 (Amendment 0001) seem to imply that “market-ready” items can be purchased outside of the DSCP Prime Vendor and DSO programs.  The Market-Ready Item Matrix Enclosures to Amendment 0001 list only beverages and bagels that are currently outside of DSCP/DSO.  May we assume that some “advanced food technology” products can be procured independent of the Prime Vendor/DSO programs?  Please clarify.

A:   The majority of commercial advanced food technology (AFT) products SHOULD be procured from DSCP’s Prime Vendors (PVs).  Currently, only a limited number of such items are provided by PVs.  Target AFT foods intended for procurement should be identified to DSCP, who will then bring those items under the PV umbrella.  AFT foods to be obtained, at significant savings from non-DSCP PV sources, should be identified to DSCP and HQMC (LFS-4) for determination of procurement exemption authorization or incorporation under PV.  Exemptions will only be allowed if DSCP is unable to match the prospective price.  As an aside, if contractors utilize its own central production facility, then DSCP’s PV role will be limited to the delivery of basic ingredients.  Follow-on distribution could be provided by either DSCP or the contractor’s own distribution assets.        

162.  Q:  Please define the process to introduce new supplies (registration and inspection processes) for market-ready items and the procurement of chemicals, uniforms, paper products, etc.    


A:  On the issue of registration and inspection, all food products must be obtained from “approved sources facilities”.  Requirements for approved subsistence sourcing are provided in paragraph C4.1.2 (Page C4EC and C4WC 1 of 8).  The Government will provide all chemicals, which is a change to the requirement in the RFP.  As for the uniforms, this is at the discretion of the Contractor as long as these items are IAW paragraph C1.15 of the RFP.  With respect to paper products, the following requirement is a change to the information previously provided in the RFP and Amendment 0001 (Question #147) regarding disposable paper products.  “Procurement of all paper products for this acquisition, to include bags and boxes for these type meals, will be the total responsibility of Government.  The Contractor is not required to procure any disposable paper products to include napkins and paper towels.”  

163.  Q:  Since the contractor will pay these suppliers, will there be an Agency Agreement from the Marine Corps in order for these purchases to remain tax-exempt?

    A:  Purchases made by the contractor are not per se tax exempt.  If a contractor is capable of taking advantage of state and local tax laws (e.g., items purchased for resale), we would expect the contractor to take advantage of these laws as it would do with any other contract.

164.  Q: Please provide DSO produce supplier information and details for each Marine Corps base/site.  Will DSO pay these suppliers and bill the contractor or will the foodservice contractor need to pay the DSO suppliers?


A:  Billing for all subsistence, including DSO/produce items, will be between DSCP and the Contractor.  The Contractor is not required to interface with the DSOs at all.  In regard to the other part of the question, the DSCP DSO produce operation uses a very robust, diverse process of providing high quality produce for DSCP customers.  As all potential offerors were briefed, the DSO uses field buyers and terminal market buyers who can buy daily, augmented by some longer-term contracts.  Providing a list of suppliers at any point in time may bear little or no relationship to the suppliers used at some future point.  More to the point, if produce is to be supplied by DSCP, then the potential offerors on this USMC acquisition have no need for a list of suppliers.  DSCP has offered to provide pricing information, but this firm has not made such a request.  As all potential offerors have been briefed, all DSCP efforts will be billed to the regional USMC contractors.  DSCP intends to execute an MOA to detail payment and other issues. 

165.  Q:  From previous statements and as responded to in Question #110 (Amendment 0001) there is still a question on the implied 8-10% “price reduction savings” from DSCP.  As per conversation with DSCP, the 8-10% savings potential for Prime Vendor shipments to the centralized production facility is a savings in distribution costs only.  Since the approximate average distributor mark up with DSCP is 8-10%, does the Marine Corps understand that this implies an overall gross product cost reduction of less than 1%?


A:  The above question gives an incomplete picture of what DSCP intends to do in terms of price reduction in support of the USMC.  It is certainly true that to the extent that the distribution on the Subsistence Prime Vendor (SPV) contracts is reduced then the distribution fee or price paid to the SPVs will be reduced; actually in some scenarios the actual distribution done under the DSCP contracts could increase.  BUT!  DSCP’s commitment to help the USMC reduce its food budget does not stop at distribution.  DSCP expects to use many tools including the sourcing of new products (some in bulk packages which will reduce the price).  DSCP may increase its central contracts program and expand its allowance program, and they have gone as far as committing to matching any viable price of which they become aware.

166.  Q:  Some of the addenda to some of the Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) either have expired or will soon expire.  Please provide the new addenda and any new CBAs with current/proposed wage scales, etc. (i.e., Appendix A to the CBA with TMI at Camp Pendleton, current CBAs with D.E.W. at 29 Palms, a new addendum for employees at MCAS Beaufort).   


A:  Amendment 0002 to Solicitation M00027-00-R-0001 (East Coast) provided Service Contract Act Wage Determinations for: (1) the National Capitol Region including Washington, DC and Quantico, VA, (2) South Carolina region (Beaufort and Parris Island), and (3) the Norfolk, VA region.  The North Carolina region, including Camp Lejeune, New River and Cherry Point locations, is pending a reconfigured wage determination from the Department of Labor to accommodate the CBA at Camp Lejeune.  The CBA that was previously in place at MCAS Beaufort between Triple P and the Industrial, Technical and Professional Employees Union has expired and this location now falls under the South Carolina wage determination that was provided in the above cited amendment.  Amendment 0002 deleted the Beaufort CBA.


Amendment 0003 to Solicitation M00027-00-R-0002 (West Coast) provides the standard wage determination for the Mono County, CA region that covers the Marine Corps Mountain Warfare Training Center, Bridgeport, CA.  The other three regions, including:  (1) San Diego County, CA (Camp Pendleton, MCRD San Diego, and Miramar) (2) San Bernardino County, CA (Twentynine Palms, CA) and (3) Yuma County, AZ (MCAS Yuma) are all pending a reconfigured wage determination from the Department of Labor to accommodate current CBAs that are in place at those locations.  These will be provided in an amendment to the solicitation as soon as they are released by DOL.  


The CBA with TMI at Camp Pendleton, CA that was completed in December 1998 is still in effect and has not been renewed since that time.  The rates that will apply to this contract will be included in the reconfigured wage determination for San Diego County, CA.


The CBAs for Twentynine Palms, CA expired in November 1999 when the previous contractors were replaced by D.E.W. Management Services.  To date, DEW and the unions have not completed a final labor agreement.  The rates that will apply to this contract will be included in the reconfigured wage determination for San Bernardino County, CA.
167.  Q:  Besides messhall offices for messhall operations, will the USMC make available all other necessary office space for support staff required to perform tasks stated in the Offeror’s proposal or will the Offeror be required to lease commercial office space outside the base? 


A:  The Marine Corps will provide limited on-base office spaces especially at the regional food services at Camps Lejeune and Pendleton and other locations as required.  As stated in the RFP (paragraph C4.4) the Contractor is required to provide their own phone service, office equipment and office supplies.     

168.  Q:  For the East Coast, please clarify the contract status of the Brig at Quantico (Messhall 3247).  Will continue to be operated by FOU/ASC.  If so, will it count towards total business goals/dollars?  


A:  FOU/ASC does not currently provide contract service to the Brig Messhall at Quantico. Since FOU/ASC provide services to 6 of  the 7 remaining messhalls at Quantico it may be practical for them to provide M&FP services to the Brig Messhall as well.

169.  Q:  How does the factor of 10% Price Evaluation Preference for HUBZone work?  Will you compare HUBZone use percentages against each other in the bids? 

    A:  The 10% price evaluation factor applies to evaluations of proposals for the prime contract; it has nothing to do with use of HUBZone firms as subcontractors, which appears to be the basis for the second sentence.  The factor is used in the evaluation of proposals that may be received from HUBZone small business concerns.  This has to do with the evaluation of offers for the prime contract, whereby the contracting officer applies a factor of 10 percent to non-HUBZone proposals in accordance with FAR 19.1307.  A HUBZone small business may be considered the low offeror, even if its price is up to 10% higher than the actual low offeror's price.

With respect to evaluating proposed HUBZone subcontracting goals in the small business subcontracting plan, each plan will be evaluated on its own merits.  Higher proposed goals will receive higher points.  

170.  Q:  What is the 2% "credit/payment" for HUBZone and Women-Owned Businesses and the 5% for Small Disadvantaged Business based on?  Is it for surpassing the Marine Corps percentage goal or "stated monetary target?"

    A:  The incentive fee is calculated as a percentage of the dollars in excess of each goal set forth in the small business subcontracting plan.  If the contractor exceeds the goal, the fee would be a percentage of the dollar amount over the goal.  For example, if a 10% small disadvantaged business goal represents $1 million, and the contractor's actual accomplishment is 20% or $2 million, then his incentive fee would be calculated at 5% of the $1 million by which he exceeded the goal, or $50 thousand. 

171.  Q:  Are there different goal percentages or dollar goals for HUBZone, women-owned, small disadvantaged businesses?

    A:  Yes, each large business offeror must propose, in its subcontracting plan, separate goals for HUBZone small business, women-owned small business, and small disadvantaged business, in addition to the overall small business subcontracting goal.  The goals are established in terms of percentages, but each proposal must show the dollars on which the percentages are based.

172.  Q:  How are the evaluation factors for the Small Business Plan assessed?  If we exceed stated goals do we get extra points or if we do better than the competition do we get all the points?  Is there a limit to the credit that is given?

    A:  The small business subcontracting plans will be evaluated in accordance with FAR 19.705, to ensure that the information, goals, and assurances are included as specified by FAR 19.704 and 52.219-9, which require that eleven elements be addressed:  separate percentage goals, dollar amounts, supplies and services to be subcontracted, method used to develop goals, method for identifying sources, a statement concerning the use of indirect costs, the name of the subcontracting program administrator, a description of efforts to be used to provide subcontracting opportunities, assurances regarding flow-down of pertinent clauses, assurances regarding reporting and studies, and a  description of records that will be maintained.

Past performance with respect to small business subcontracting on federal contracts (if any) will be considered.

Higher goal percentages will be evaluated more favorably. 

Proposals will be evaluated on their own merits, and will be rated accordingly.  If you "do better than the competition," you would not necessarily "get all the points."  It is possible, for instance, that all offerors might each receive the highest possible rating if they all have outstanding small business subcontracting plans.  Proposals will not be compared to one another when assigning ratings.

The small business subcontracting evaluation factor has a certain weighting, and the "limit to the credit that is given" would be the weight assigned to for this factor.  
173.  Q:  Section M.3.4.1 (Price Evaluation) states that total 

evaluated amount for proposal base year period (5 years) and option years will be used in determining Best Price.  Please clarify what total evaluated amount consists of and what is meant by best price?  In addition, Section M.3.4.1 states that proposed price will be evaluated for price realism and the results of the analysis may be used in performance risk assessments and responsibility determinations.  Is proposed price and total estimated price the same number?  Explain how the results may be used in performance risk assessments and responsibility determination?  What criteria will be used in this evaluation?

    A:  The total evaluated amount is the cumulative total of all priced CLINs.  The proposed price is the same as the total estimated price; however, see below for discussion of potential overrun and underrun estimates in the cost evaluation.  With respect to cost realism, each cost proposal will be compared to the approach set forth in the associated technical proposal to assess the realism of the costs proposed (i.e., can the offeror perform as described in the technical proposal within the constraints set by the cost proposal?).  Unrealistically low offers, indicative of a potential buy-in, will be considered in determining the risk inherent in awarding the contract to such an offeror, as well as in the evaluation of the responsibility of that offeror.
174.  Q:  Section M.3.4.1 (d) (Total Estimated Price) states that total estimated price will be determined by adding up all line items with the exception of those CLINS in M.3.4.1 above.  For line items with estimated quantities, Best Estimated Quantities (BEQ) will be used for the price calculation.  If the amounts for CLINs 0001, 0003, 0006, 0009, 0012, 0015, 0018, 0021 are the Target Prices for each year then how will elements like Target Price Per Meal, Ceiling Price Per Meal and Share Ratio be evaluated given they are not a line item?  Will the price evaluation factors be applied separately against each line item?  Is the total evaluated price the same as the total estimated price?  What will be the potential overrun and underrun scenarios used in the evaluation?
    A:  Our cost evaluation will include various hypothetical overrun and underrun situations (i.e., percentage variances in actual cost over or under target cost), to assess the impact of the share ratio and ceiling price per meal proposed on the chargeable price per meal in each situation.  This assessment will be performed for each Fixed-Price Incentive CLIN, and added to the total amounts proposed for the Firm-Fixed Price and Time and Materials CLINs.  As a result, the Government will generate several evaluated prices for each offeror, each based on the targets, share ratio and ceilings proposed as applied to the evaluated overrun and underrun scenarios.

175.  Q:  Information provided by the Marine Corps for industry studies of food service at Camp Pendleton three years ago, indicated direct labor, subsistence and mess contracts cost about $48M on 7.3M meals annually, or $6.58 per meal.  About the same time, a study on Advanced Food Technology for the Navy indicated per meal cost for the Marines on the West Coast was approximately $6.33 per meal.  Current costs for food service at Quantico is approximately $7.8M per year on 1.2M meals annually, or $6.50 per meal (the value of the mess contract of $5.6M plus $2.2M for subsistence based on FY00 East Coast BDFA of $5.467).   Collectively, it appears per meal cost to the Marines is somewhere in the $6.45 range.  Contrasted with the Marine Corps estimate of $3.74 per meal CONUS-wide, there is 40% plus difference.  Please substantiate the economic basis for the significant variance or describe what circumstances are significantly different at Pendleton and Quantico to create the variance.
    A:  The meal costs as determined by some of the industry studies and, in particular, by the cited study conducted for the Navy, determined the TOTAL cost of providing food service.  Those costs included all food service military, regardless of their assignment, and estimated utility costs for each messhall.  Food service Marines assigned to the FMF are required for deployment support.  When not deployed, they are intentionally overstaffed at some messhalls.  Consequently, when their labor costs are included, the cost per meal is artificially inflated.  Likewise, utility costs are transparent since it is provided by the Government.  Including the cost of utilities and FMF Marines may result in an accurate TOTAL cost per meal, but it is not reflective of a reimbursable cost per meal.  Internal studies conducted by HQMC in late 1998 and early 1999 determined that four of Quantico’s messhalls were experiencing unusually low meals per labor hour productivity.  Low productivity contributes directly to higher costs per meal, and is one of the factors that support baselining performance through regionalization.

176.  Q:  The Marine Corps FY 2001 President’s Budget Submission indicates a $90M budget for the total CONUS Food Service.  Using the projected meal counts provided in Schedule B of the RFP, the cost per meal is projected to be $3.03 per meal.  If all offerors submit bids compliant with the provided Statement of Work and the bids are priced above $3.03 per meal, will the Marines move forward with the procurement?

If all offerors submit bids compliant with the provided Statement of Work and the bids are priced above current cost estimates of $3.74 per meal, will the Marines move forward with the procurement?

    A:  As has been discussed repeatedly, the U. S. Marine Corps is required to trim its food service program expenses.  Failure to achieve significant savings through these regional contracts will result in no contract being awarded, and dramatic changes in the food service program.

177.  Q:  Meal data included in Enclosure (3) in Amendment 0001 indicates that in Field, Box, Bag Meals there are 332,088 for the West Coast and 1,821,391 for the East Coast.  Is there any way that the Marine Corps could estimate for both regions the number of box lunches included in these Meals Away?
    A:  The Marine Corps cannot, at this point, provide a better breakdown of these meals.  In the past, at most bases and stations, especially those with no previous contracted food services, these meal counts were never separated from the overall meal counts.  There was never a need to break them out separately.  However, through this process the meal counts for bag/box meals are included in the overall totals within the Full Menu and Fast Food Meals” as currently annotated in TE2 of the RFP.

The Marine Corps understands that box/bag meals are more labor intensive than general meal preparation, with individual bag/box meal component preparation, wrapping, bagging, etc., which may have prompted this question.  We also understand that food costs associated with box/bag meals are generally lower than for general meals.  Each offeror has an alternative in this regard.  A contractor may choose to conduct a cost benefit analysis between actual on-site preparation of bag/box meals or commercial off-the-shelf prepared sandwich meals and/or shelf stable bag meals/kit items available through many of DSCP Prime Vendors.

178.  Q:  Since the DOL on May 18, 2000 issued MEMORANDUM NO. 193 changing the SCA H&W requirement from $1.63 to $1.92, will the Marine Corps be issuing an amendment updating the requirement for this procurement?

    A:  The revised wage determinations that incorporate the new Health and Welfare benefits will be added when they become available to us.

179.  Q:  Are we correct that the dollars we propose to spend for work that is not done under a mandatory JWOD set-aside would count against the prime contractor’s minimum 30 percent small business subcontracting requirement?

    A:  No.  Only subcontracts with small businesses will count towards achievement of the 30% small business subcontracting requirement.  The purpose of the 30% small business subcontracting requirement is to protect small business interests by providing subcontracting opportunities for small business.  The intent is to ensure an equitable amount of small business subcontracting, since JWOD subcontracted dollars will count heavily under the small business subcontracting goals.  

All subcontracted dollars with JWOD agencies, whether through mandatory set-aside subcontracts or independently subcontracted, will be counted towards achievement of the small business goals set forth in the subcontracting plan.  However, the small business subcontracting requirement is separate from the goals to be set forth in the plan, although closely related and integral to the plan. 

Please refer to the answer to Question 106 attached to Amendment 0001, which states in part that: "The 30% mandatory small business subcontracting requirement is not the same as the small business subcontracting goal...."  Additionally, the answer to Question 125 attached to Amendment 0001 states that: "JWOD is not included in the 30% mandatory small business requirement; however, JWOD is included in the small business goal calculations and reporting under the small business subcontracting plan."  Furthermore, paragraph C1.5.2 states, in part, that "An acceptable Small Business Subcontracting Plan will reflect that at least 30% of the total contract amount ... be subcontracted to small business concerns as defined by FAR 19.001 (i.e., a business entity organized for profit and qualified as small under the criteria and size standards set forth in FAR Subpart 19.1).  This is not a goal, it is an absolute requirement; however, the 30% small business subcontracting requirement shall be included in the calculation of the small business subcontracting goal in the overall small business subcontracting plan."

In summary, the small business subcontracting requirement is not the same as the small business subcontracting goal.  Only subcontracts with small businesses count towards meeting the 30% small business subcontracting requirement.  But all JWOD subcontracting does apply towards the small business subcontracting goal under the small business subcontracting plan.

180.  Q:  CLIN's 0001, 0002AA and 0002AB were amended and reduced by three months.  Will the entire contract term including options be seven years and nine months?  Or will the Marine Corps add CLIN's to make the term including options eight years?  How will the term affect the cancellation ceilings in H.3?

    A:  The Marine Corps does not plan to add CLINs to account for the three-month reduction.  Thus, as of this Amendment 0006, the contract term will be seven years and nine months (basic period of four years and nine months, plus three one-year options).  The Program Years and cancellation ceilings cited in paragraph H.3 will continue to correspond to FY02 through FY05, the last four years of the multi-year portion of the contract, after the initial nine-month period.  The dollar amounts and time periods stated remain unchanged.
181.  Q:  Section C5.18 TPR 9a.  P5010 no longer provides numerical Sanitary Compliance Score (SCS).  Scoring is based on critical and non-critical elements.  Please clarify requirements for this section.

    A:  Please see text of this amendment for revision to cited Section C paragraph.

182.  Q:  Amendment 0004 provided a summary of effective CBA's and Wage Determinations.  If cases where CBA's were deleted, i.e. Camp Pendleton and 29 Palms, and new Wage Determinations were published, the Wage Determination hourly rates are substantially less than those paid under the CBA's.  It is unlikely that current employees were asked to accept reduced hourly pay rates, in some $.70 per hour for Camp Pendleton and $.98 per hour for 29 Palms. 

Because of these large differences in pay rates, can the Marine Corps 

provide clarification as to what current rates are for these locations 

and others where a CBA is no longer valid and the wage determination 

minimums apply?
    A:  In those cases where a CBA is no longer in effect, and has not been replaced by a follow-on CBA, the wages and benefits set forth in the CBA remain valid.  For pricing purposes, offerors should use the rates cited in those CBAs, and the Wage Determination for those classifications not covered by the CBA.
183.  Q:  Many of the bases have contracts in place for locally procured items, particularly beverages.  Bread, milk and ice cream are also acquired at each base through DSCP.  Will the regional prime contractor be responsible for these items?  For items currently acquired through DSCP, will the regional contractor have to pick up those same DSCP contracts, or does the contractor have the option of acquiring bread, milk and ice cream through other means?

    A:  While the regional prime contractor will be responsible for providing subsistence items, including the above, use of DSCP contracts is not mandatory for locally procured items.  The contractor may use DSCP or its own sources, whichever is deemed more advantageous.  The contractor must have coverage in place to provide all subsistence items at all messhalls, as of the date the contractor begins providing service at each messhall under the phase-in plan.  Additional information relative to such market-ready items was provided under Amendment 0001 to the solicitation.

184.  Q:  Will the contract be covered by the Cost Accounting Standards (CAS)?  Will a CAS statement be required to be submitted prior to award?  Will the statement be reviewed as part of the pre-award audit?
    
    A:  Due to its estimated dollar value, this contract will be subject to full CAS coverage.  If the contract is awarded to a small business, as defined by FAR Part 19, the contract would not be subject to CAS.  FAR 52.230-2, entitled Cost Accounting Standards and incorporated in Section I of the solicitation, will be in effect upon award of the contract, unless the contractor is exempt due to its small business status.

We are not requiring a Cost Accounting Standards Disclosure Statement to be submitted with the proposals.  However, if offerors have CAS covered contracts, they may submit a Disclosure Statement with their proposal at their option to support their pricing proposal and provide information about their accounting system.  If a pre-award survey is conducted, the CAS Disclosure Statement will be reviewed in conjunction with the review of the accounting system if the offeror already has CAS covered contracts.  If the offeror does not have CAS covered contracts or is otherwise exempt from CAS, there will not be a requirement to provide a Disclosure Statement at that time.  The successful offeror who is awarded the contract will be required to submit a Disclosure Statement within 60 days after contract award, unless exempt from CAS.

185.  Q:  Reference Technical Exhibit 1, Peformance Requirements Summary (PRS).  We believe the approach to compute the formula used for deduction purposes needs to be revised because target price-per-meal includes both food and service cost.  The contractor has little or no control over food cost given Government sources will be the primary provider.  The PRS is service oriented and any deduction should correlate to our failure to provide a service.  We recommend the approach for the formula be revised as follows:  target minus food cost per meal times total number of meals served for the quarter.  We believe this approach provides a fairer representation of the services
that the contractor is actually providing.  Request the approach for determining PRS deductions for random and planning sampling be revised.

    A:  Subsistence cost has been removed from the formula used for computing performance deductions.  See Revised TE1 (Amendment 0008, Enclosure (1)).
186.  Q:  Reference Technical Exhibit 1, Performance Requirements Summary (PRS), Paragraph 12.  Reinspection Fee states that in the event the Government must reinspect Contractor services, a reinspection fee, $34.00 per hour, shall be assessed against the contractor.  Per paragraph 11.  Re-performance of Defective Work, given that the contractor shall not be required or entitled to re-perform, perform late, or otherwise correct defective work for the purpose of avoiding a defect for the day of evaluation and any applicable reduction in contract price, when will a Government reinspection be required and who makes that determination?  How are the numbers of hours determined for a reinspection and the number of reinspections?  How will the contractor pay the Government for any reinspection fee?

    A:  The Reinspection Fee paragraph has been deleted from the TE1 narrative.  See Revised TE1 (Amendment 0008, Enclosure (1)).

187. Q:  Will equipment maintenance be expected to commence on 1 October 2001, or will the start date be one year after contract award?
    A:  It remains a requirement that equipment maintenance will commence 1 October 2001.

188.  Q:  How will the current total cost of “approximately $4.00” per meal be taken into account in evaluating offers?  Will offers that include a ceiling price in excess of $4.00 per meal be rejected?  If not, how will such offers be evaluated?  What range of variation from $4.00 is implied by the word “approximately”?

    Q:  How will the “$3.35 or less” amount be taken into account in evaluating offers?  Will offers that include an annual target price (or actual price) greater than $3.35 be rejected?  If not, how will such offers be evaluated?
    A:  All offers, including those proposing ceiling prices above $4.00 and target prices above $3.35, will be evaluated.  It is possible that offers above these two figures could be acceptable if:  (1) the technical merits of the proposal reflect it to represent the best value and worth the price proposed; and/or (2) higher prices are proposed for one or more years, but savings are projected over the total 8-year “life-cycle” of the contract.  Proposals offering life-cycle pricing above the amounts presently budgeted by the Marine Corps, with escalation in the out years, will not be evaluated as favorably as those below that level.  The significance of the word “approximately” is in the context of how much we are presently incurring rather than how much we are willing to pay; i.e., our present cost was computed to $4.03, or approximately $4.00 per meal.

189.  Q:  Is either the “approximately $4.00” or the “$3.35 or less” amount considered to be a “price offered by independent market sources” or an “Independent Government Cost Estimate” for purposes of the comparison described in Sec. M.3.4.1, para. (c)?  If so, provide details.
    A:  $4.00 represents our actual costs.  $3.35 is an internal Marine Corps figure based on anticipated costs and potential savings we desire to achieve.

We are concerned that the Ceiling Price Per Meal provision establishes a false or inappropriate comparison between the costs of contractor performance and costs of in-house Marine Corps performance.  More specifically, we are concerned that:  (i) the “approximately $4.00” and “$3.35 or less” amounts do not include all direct and indirect costs of in-house Government performance; and (ii) the Statement of Work (“SOW”) includes performance obligations and costs for the contractor that are different from the in-house performance and costs of the Government.  As one aspect of this, the Solicitation directs the contractor to use sources of certain supplies and services, but the rates for those supplies and services are left open to negotiation 

between the contractor and the directed source (virtually assuring that the contractor’s costs will be higher than the in-house costs of the Marine Corps).  All of this makes invalid the comparison of contractor costs to costs of in-house performance by the Marine Corps – which in turn raises concerns about Solicitation reasonableness and compliance with OMB Circular A-76, the Federal Activities Inventory Reform Act of 1998 (“FAIR Act”) and 10 U.S.C. §2462(b).  In this connection, please respond to the following [3] questions:

190.  Q:  Do the “approximately $4.00” and “$3.35 or less” amounts include – and, if not, will these amounts be modified to include – all of the Government’s direct and indirect costs, including the following:  project management, quality control, administration and overhead; mess hall management; and general and administrative costs?

    A:  This acquisition does not involve an A-76 study.  The indirect costs listed above are not relevant to the project.  The figures cited derive from our estimates of the level of effort required under these contracts.
191.  Q:  Will the Marine Corps modify the “approximately $4.00” and “$3.35 or less” amounts to include the contractor’s costs associated with purchases of supplies and services from directed sources?

    A:  The Marine Corps does not intend to revise the figures cited.  We realize that possible increases as a result of directed sources could impact cost proposals –- offerors should submit their best pricing proposals, considering advanced food technology to minimize the potential impact.

192.  Q:  Do you anticipate that cost/price proposals will be evaluated for reasonableness and realism by comparing contractor and Government costs for only those specific cost items mentioned in Q/A # 104?

    A:  The focus of the cost evaluation will be an assessment of whether the pricing proposal is a reasonable and realistic reflection of the technical proposal.  The specific cost elements listed in Q/A #104 will not enter into the reasonableness/realism evaluation.

193.  Q:  The government is asking the offeror to submit pricing by labor categories in sufficient detail to determine that the price in its proposal is realistic for the work to be performed (i.e., demonstrate the requirements of Section C.5 are met).  Therefore, providing direct labor pricing in only two labor categories, cooks and mess attendants, would not be sufficient.  Rather, the categories need to be aligned with the C.5 requirements.  For example, mess attendants would further be categorized into such positions as, salad preparation, salad bar service, beverage bar service, storeroom, custodial, etc.  Is this interpretation correct?
    A:  Paragraph L.10.2 leaves discretion to each offeror to propose any and all labor categories required, not necessarily limited to cooks and mess attendants.

194.  Q:  Can you please clarify what is needed in Vol. One for Contract Administration data?  Is this our Contract Administrator info 

or our DCAA information?

    A:  Per para L.9 of the solicitation, Contract Administration Data (Section G) and Representations, Certifications and Other Statements of Offerors (Section L) should be completed and provided in Volume I.  For Section G, this refers to Paragraph G.1(b), the address of the Defense Contract Audit Agency office supporting your company.

195.  Q:  In Amendment 0004, Wage Determination No. 94-2058 for the San Diego and Camp Pendleton areas, identifies on page 6 of 8, that Health & Welfare requires an average employer contribution of $2.56 per hour.  It goes on to list life, accident, health insurance, sick leave, pension plans, civic and personal leave, severance pay, and savings and thrift plans.  No other WD that we have received is at this rate nor do they mention all of these benefits.  Please clarify.

How will this be effected by the DOL notice of Health & Welfare going 

to $1.92?

    A:  The fringe benefit rate of $2.56 per hour is included in Wage Determination Numbers 94-2058 for San Diego County, California, 94-2334 for Mono County, CA (Bridgeport) and 94-2054 for San Bernardino County, CA (Twentynine Palms).  This is a more comprehensive fringe benefit package than that which is included in other wage determinations, which, for the most part, only list "Health and Welfare".  Questions about how these should be treated with respect to employee benefit or compensation plans should be directed to the Department of Labor.  The revised Wage Determinations for June 2000 for San Diego County and San Bernardino County, CA have been published, and the $2.56 fringe benefit rate has remained the same in this latest revision.
196.  Q:  For Messhall 520430, the Dinner Meal total of 30,992 is apparently in error.  It should read 309,992.  The total meals of 678,156 uses 30,992 in calculating the total.  This is a difference of 279,000 meals.  Will this change the West Coast total in Enclosure (3) to Amendment 0001?

    A:  Yes.  The West Coast meal total is corrected to read 13,143,120, as depicted on the revised chart, incorporated in this Amendment 0006 as Enclosure (1).  Section B is also being revised by this Amendment to reflect new meal total.
197. For the West Coast, Section J, Attachments VI, Enclosures (2) Wage Determinations and (3) Collective Bargaining Agreements:

    a.  VI-2, Wage Determination for Camp Pendleton, MCAS Miramar and MCRD San Diego.  It has been brought to our attention by NISH West, that the Health & Welfare contribution of $ 2.56 was established as a “grandfather” clause from an A-76 program effecting Civil Service employees and would not apply to new facilities.  This would include the two messhalls at MCRD San Diego (569 and 620) and, perhaps, Messhall 31611 at Camp Pendleton.  The H&W of $ 2.02 would apply.  Please clarify.

    A:  The lower Health & Welfare (H&W) rate applies to the facilities at Marine Corps Recruit Depot (MCRD) San Diego.  We have determined that Service Contract Act Area Wage Determination (SCAAWD) Number 1994-2057, that contains the lower H&W rate, is the correct wage determination for the messhalls (Buildings 569 and 620) at MCRD San Diego.

Please refer to Amendment 0008, Enclosure (3) of the solicitation for a more detailed explanation of the relationship between CBAs and SCA Area Wage Determinations for establishing contract labor rates.

    b.  VII-2, CBA for all Camp Pendleton except 520430.  Does this CBA apply for Messhall 31611 (Edson Range)?  Are there currently civilian employees at this messhall?  Please clarify.

    A:  SCAAWD Number 1994-2057 does not apply to Building 31611 at Camp Pendleton, nor to Building 24100, because these messhalls are covered by the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) at Camp Pendleton, and the CBA takes precedence over the SCAAWD.  As a result, the H&W rate cited in the CBA is to be used for all the buildings at this location.  There are currently no civilian personnel at Messhall 34611.  Military personnel staff this building.

198.  The language “delay in the commencement of performance” could mean that the bidders’ actual costs of performance (e.g. food cost, operational cost, capital cost) could be different (lower or higher) than those reflected in the first FPR.  Is this a correct interpretation of your January 24th letter? 

    A:  We would anticipate that the projected costs of performance will change from that proposed in the first Final Proposal Revisions.  However, the basis for the changes must be clearly delineated and adequately substantiated.  Any changes must be solely attributable to the delay rather than to changes in an offeror’s technical approach, management philosophy or assumptions.

199.  Is use of the rates set forth in the current Wage Determinations (WDs) and Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) mandatory, or may an offeror submit pricing based on the WDs and CBAs in effect for its earlier submission?

    A:  Offerors’ second FPR pricing should be revised to reflect the current WD and CBA rates.

200.  If an offeror uses rates lower that those cited in the existing WDs and CBAs, how would the USMC react in evaluation?

    A:  We would not reject such a proposal, or adjust the rates upward for evaluation purposes, but as with any pricing figures considered unrealistically low we would assess the impact in the context of performance risk and/or responsibility.

201.  May offerors propose rates higher than those contained in current WDs and CBAs, if considered necessary to attract and retain qualified personnel?

    A:  Yes, the WD and CBA rates are minimums only.

202.  May an offeror revise its target profit or share ratio, from those set forth in its first FPR?

    A:  No, such a revision would be a change in pricing not attributable to the delay in the period of performance.

203.  May an offeror lower its indirect rates below those proposed in its first FPR, and cap those rates?

    A:  Direct or indirect rates may be increased or decreased, if the revisions are supported by changed conditions (e.g., expansion in new business, change in accounting procedures) rather than a new competitive approach.  For an offeror to incorporate a rate cap for the first time in its second FPR, and link that cap to an unrealistically low rate, would be considered in our risk and/or responsibility assessments.

204.  The Contract Line Item Numbers (CLINs) cited in paragraph M.3.4.1 do not match those cited in Section B.

    A:  The CLINs listed in paragraph M.3.4.1, which include “AF” subCLINs, are in error.  They should include “AC” subCLINs only.  The correction can be found in enclosure (2) to Amendment 0016.

205.  Please provide a definition of “direct rates” as used in response to question 6 for the East Coast and question 7 for the West Coast.

    A:  Direct rates are hourly pay rates for individuals or labor categories.

206.  Please provide a definition of “indirect rates” as used in response to question 6 for the East Coast and question 7 for the West Coast.

    A:  Indirect rates are those percentages or multipliers associated with indirect costs.  These may be applied to either direct labor (e.g., labor overhead, worker’s compensation, FICA), supplies (e.g., material burden), or cost subtotals (e.g., general and administrative expense).

207.  The Marine Corps suggests in response to question 3 for the East Coast and question 4 for the West Coast that an offeror may propose rates that are lower than the rates in the existing WDs and CBAs.  If this is true, how does the Marine Corps plan on verifying whether the offerors’ Second FPRs are compliant with the applicable WDs and CBAs?

    A:  Our responses to the questions cited above should be read in conjunction with those immediately preceding, in which we stated, “Offerors’ second FPR pricing should be escalated to reflect the current WD and CBA rates.”  Our intent in these responses was to state that the rates set forth in Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) and Department of Labor Area Wage Determinations represent minimums, and compliance with such rates will be mandatory under the resultant contracts.  Labor rates proposed below those levels will not only be considered unrealistically low, but would also preclude contract award to that offeror based on that proposal.  To clarify our responses in Amendment 0016, the USMC cannot accept an offer that proposes rates below those mandated by applicable Area Wage Determinations and CBAs under the Service Contract Act; this would constitute a proposal deficiency that would render a proposal unacceptable.

208.  Please clarify what types of changed conditions are considered “attributable to the delay” in performance as discussed in response to question 1 for the East Coast and question 2 for the West Coast.

    A:  The question reflects some confusion involving several questions and answers provided in Amendment 0016.  Changed conditions were mentioned in Answer 6 for the East Coast and Question 7 for the West Coast in the context of revised direct and indirect rates (see Answers 1 and 2 above).  That is, should changed conditions result in a change in an offeror’s rates, updated rates should be incorporated in that offeror’s Second FPR.  The words “attributable to the delay” in Questions 1 and 2 relate to the revised cost of providing the required supplies and services, using the same approaches as described in the offeror’s initial proposal and First FPR.  It is anticipated that the new period of performance will result in changes in pricing for labor and subsistence, but that revised pricing must be based on the same labor and subsistence as proposed in the First FPR.  Unless a specific exception was made in discussions with an offeror, revisions in the levels or types of proposed labor or subsistence, based on new technical approaches, should not be introduced in offerors’ Second FPRs.

209.  May an offeror correct an arithmetic error from our First FPR?

    A:  Yes.  Offerors should explain the basis for such a change in their Second FPRs.


